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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA
WESTERN DIVISION

NO. 11-4111
JAMES SAK and PEGGY LEIFER,

Plaintiffs,

INJUNCTIONS

)
)
)
)
)
)
) MOTION FOR PRELIMINARY
)
)
)
THE CITY OF AURELIA, IOWA )
)
) (EXPEDITED HEARING REQUESTED)

) (EVIDENTIARY HEARING REQUESTED)
Defendant. )

COMES NOW Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer, a married couple, by and through
the undersigned, and pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65, Local Rules 65, 7.j move
the Court for a preliminary injunction and expedited relief, as state as follows in support thereof:

1. This is an action concerning the Defendant’s discrimination under the Americans

with Disabilities Act due to its enforcement of a city ordinance banning pit bulls against Plaintiff,

“James Sak’s service dog, named Snickers who is a pit bull mix.

2. On or about December 14, 2011, Defendant, acting through its City Council and
City Attorney and pursuant to the City of Aurelia Ordinance, chapter 58, titled “Pit Bull Dog”
banned Mr. Sak’s service dog Snickers from Aurelia city limits where Plaintiffs reside. See
Exhibit D, attached to the Complaint.

3. Snickers is a service dog that is medically necessary for Mr. Saks due to Mr,

Sak’s permanent disability as a result of a hemorrhagic stroke. Snickers was adopted by Mr. Sak
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at the age of eight weeks and is now five and a half years old. Snickers has no history of
aggression or unprovoked violence. There are no allegations that Snickers has a history of
violence or aggression. See Exhibits A and B, attached to the Complaint.

4, Snickers is subject to destruction pursuant to the Aurelia city ordinance if found
within city limits.

5. Snickers is a service dog protected by the Americans with Disabilities Act
(“ADA”). 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.

6. Plaintiffs have and will continue to suffer irreparable harm from this conduct.
Specifically, Mr. Sak requires Snickers’ aid as Mr. Sak is unable to control the right side of his
body resultant from a hemorrhagic stroke. Mr. Sak and Snickers, together, participated in
physical therapy enabling Mr. Sak to live independently, though he is permanently disabled.
Snickers is a medical necessity, as determined by Mr, Sak’s medical professionals who assisted
in his recovery. The service dog Snickers enables Mr. Sak to move through the community and
live independently in his home; the loss of service dog Snickers squarely impacts Mr. Sak’s
ability to undertake daily functions. Mr. Sak has already fallen once since the loss of Snickers
and required emergency assistance from law enforcement. Mr. Sak does not have an adequate

| remedy at law because of the present and future risk that Mr. Sak be injured due to the loss of his
medically necessary service dog.

7. The harm suffered by Plaintiffs far exceeds any potential harm to Defendant.
Snickers has not been accused of any bad actions; rather, the Defendant’s actions are wholly
based on the fact that Snickers is a mixed breed that, upon information and belief, contains pit
bull. Snickers presents absolutely no identifiable harm to the City of Aurelia or its residents, nor

is there any factual evidence specific to Snickers to demonstrate otherwise, other than conjecture.
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8. Plaintiffs seek a preliminary injunction against Defendants to enjoin its ongoing
discrimination against Mr. Sak, who is protected under the ADA.

9. As explained in the accompanying brief, Plaintiffs have met their burden to
establish the balance of equities weighs in favor of granting the preliminary injunction.

10.  Plaintiffs request an evidentiary hearing to present additional evidence, including
witness testimony.

11.  Plaintiffs are filing a brief in support of this Motion, which is incorporated herein
by its reference.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer, respectfully request the Court
enter an Order:

L. Ordering an immediate return of the service dog, Snickers to Mr. Sak;

2. Enjoining the City of Aurelia from enforcing the city ordinance prohibiting pit
bulls, with respect to Mr. Sak’s service dog;

3. Ordering that Defendant is precluded from enforcing its city ordinance restrictions
against Snickers that apply to pit bulls in Aurelia, Iowa that are “grandfathered in” because
Snickers, as a service dog, cannot be held to the unreasonable restrictions that appear in the city
ordinance if he is to do his job of protecting and assisting Mr. Sak; and

4. Scheduling an evidentiary hearing on the Motion to be held within five (5) days.
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Of Counsel:

Davis, Brown, Koehn,
Shors & Roberts, P.C.,
The Davis Brown Tower
215 10th St. Suite 1300
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993

Copy to:

George W. Wittgraf
223 North Pine Street
P.O. Box 535
Cherokee, Iowa 51012

[s/Sharon K, Malheiro

Sharon K., Malheiro, AT0004936

Michael C. Richards, AT0010828

Michele L. Warnock, AT0010068

The Davis Brown Tower

215 10th St. Suite 1300

Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993

Telephone: (515) 288-2500

Facsimile: (515) 243-0654

E-mail: sharonmalbeiro @davisbrownlaw,.com
E-mail: mikerichards @davisbrownlaw.com
E-mail: michelewarnock @davisbrownlaw.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFES

PROOF OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing

instrument was served upon all parties to the above
cause to each of the attorneys of record herein at
their respective addresses disclosed on the pleadings
on December 22, 2011 by:

00 US Mail 0 FAX
0 Hand Delivered O Overnight Courier
0 Federal Express X Other: CM/ECF

Signature: /s/ Sharon K. Malheiro




Case 5:11-cv-04111 Document 2-1  Filed 12/22/11 Page 1 of 12

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

WESTERN DIVISION
) NO. 11-4111
JAMES SAK and PEGGY LEIFER, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
V. )
)
) BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF
) PLAINTIFFS’ MOTION FOR
) PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION
)
THE CITY OF AURELIJA, IOWA )
) (EXPEDITED RELIEF REQUESTED)
)
)
)
Defendant. )

COMES NOW Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer, a married couple, by and through
the undersigned, and pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65, Local Rules 65, 7.j and

submit the following Brief in Support of Plaintiffs’ Motion for Preliminary Injunction:

TABLE OF CONTENTS
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I. PLAINTIFF IS LIKELY TO SUCCEED ON THE MERITS OF ITS CLAIM
AGAINST DEFENDANT, THE CITY OF AURELIA BECAUSE DEFENDANT
DISCRIMINATED AGAINST PLAINTIFF IN VIOLATION OF THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT .....cocivervirennnnnesersinensesnensssesennens 4
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L DEFENDANT’S CONDUCT THREATENS IRREPARABLE HARM TO

PLAINTIFES
III. ~ THE BALANCE OF THE HARMS WEIGHS IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFFS .......... 10
IV.  APRELIMINARY INJUNCTION WOULD SERVE THE PUBLIC INTEREST .... 10

CONCLUSTON ittt see et st sse st s seeseaesressaesaessaessessessesssessasssesssnassneas 11

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer are a married couple who relocated from Chicago,

"Ilinois to Aurelia, Iowa in November of 2011, Ms. Leifer was born and raised in Aurelia and

returned to live close by and provide care for Ms. Leifer’s ailing mother, age 87. Mr. Sak is a
retired Chicago police officer and Vietnam Veteran (Army). Mr, Sak and Ms. Leifer dated for
several years before becoming married in 2009,

In 2008, Mr. Sak suffered a hemorrhagic stroke which left him permanently disabled.

-Mr. Sak is unable to control the right side of his body and is confined to a wheelchair. As part of

his physical therapy at the University of Illinois Medical Center, Mr, Sak and his family dog

‘named Snickers learned how he could live independently after suffering this disability. Snickers

became Mr. Sak’s service dog and assists Mr, Sak. Mr. Sak’s physical therapist described the
assistance in that Snickers helps “with tasks which mitigate [Mr. Sak’s] disability, including
walking, balance, and retrieving items around the house.” See Exhibit B, attached to the

Complaint. Snickers is a certified service dog and appears on the National Service Animal

‘Registry. See Exhibit A, attached to the Complaint.

Snickers is also a mixed breed dog, containing pit bull. Snickers was adopted by Mr.
Saks at eight weeks old from a “backyard breeder” and has been a part of the family since that

time. After the stroke, Snickers was transformed from a pet into a service dog. Snickers has no
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history of aggression or unprovoked violence. In fact, there are no allegations that Snickers has
acted in any way other than as a service dog.

Upon relocating to Aurelia, Iowa, Plaintiffs were summoned to a City Council meeting
on November 21, 2011 wherein they were informed that Aurelia has a city ordinance prohibiting
pit bulls. Plaintiffs explained to the City Council that Snickers is a service dog, to no avail.
Plaintiffs obtained Snickers’ registration as a service dog and written confirmation by Mr. Sak’s
physical therapist that Snickers is medically necessary given Mr. Sak’s condition. These facts
fell on deaf ears. Thirty-six residents signed a petition asking that there be no exceptions to the
city ordinance—evidently, not even for service dogs, protected under the Americans with
Disabilities Act. On December 14, 2011, a special City Council meeting was convened and the
Piaintiffs were told that Snickers must be removed from city limits within 24 hours. The city
ordinance provides that individuals not in compliance with the ordinance will face destruction of
their animals.

Plaintiffs have been forced to incur the costs of boarding Snickers with a veterinarian
outside of city limits since the City Counsel’s decision. With the upcoming Christmas holiday,
the veterinarian informed the Plaintiffs that holiday reservations have made it so there is no
capacity to house Snickers past Friday, December 23, 2011. Plaintiffs are desperately seeking an
alternative location to board Snickers or for a foster family in another municipality. However,
Snickers should be returned to his home to provide the much needed assistance to Mr. Sak.

More importantly, however, since the City Counsel’s unlawful decision, Mr. Sak has
Been denied access to his medically necessary service dog, and has suffered as a result thereof.
Mr. Sak fell from his wheelchair, and without the assistance of his service dog to help him get

back up, Ms. Leifer was forced to call 911, requiring an officer to emergently assist. Mr. Sak
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and Ms. Leifer suffered and continue to suffer severe emotional anguish as a result thereof.
Snickers provided a sense of safety, helping the Plaintiffs cope with Mr. Sak’s disability. That
safety was apparently deemed illegal by the City of Aurelia. Further, Ms, Leifer’s ability to care
for her ailing mother has been compromised since it is extremely precarious to leave her
husband’s side since Snickers was deemed persona non grata within city limits.
STANDARDS FOR A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION

The Eighth Circuit has set forth four factors which must be considered in determining
whether to grant injunctive relief under Fed.R.Civ.P. 65(a), referred to often as the Dataphase
factors. Those factors are: (1) Plaintiffs’ probability of success on the merits; (2) the threat of
‘irreparable harm to Plaintiffs; (3) the balance between the harm to Plaintiffs and the potential
harm to Defendant if an injunction is granted; and (4) whether an injunction serves the public
‘interest. Dataphase Systems, Inc. v. CL Systems, Inc., 640 F.2d 109, 114 (8th Cir. 1981). No
single factor is dispositive, requiring that each factor be considered to determine the balance of
the equities. Sanborn Mfg. Co., Inc. v. Campbell Hausfeld / Scott Fetzer, Co., 997 F.2d 484, 486
(8th Cir. 1993). The primary function of a preliminary injunction is to preserve the status quo
until the final disposition of the case. Id. at 490. A district court has broad discretion in deciding
whether a preliminary injunction should be issued. Lankford v. Sherman, 451 F.3d 496, 503 (8th
Cir. 2006).

ARGUMENT AND AUTHORITIES
I PLAINTIFF IS LIKELY TO SUCCEED ON THE MERITS OF ITS CLAIM
AGAINST DEFENDANT, THE CITY OF AURELIA BECAUSE

DEFENDANT DISCRIMINATED AGAINST PLAINTIFF IN VIOLATION OF
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT.
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Plaintiffs need not show that they will ultimately succeed on its claims. American Fin.
Advisors, Inc. v. Yantis, 358 F.Supp.2d 818, 826 (N.D. Iowa 2005). ‘“Rather, the movant’s
success on the merits must be at least...sufficiently likely to support the kind of relief it
'requests.” Id. (internal citations omitted). “Thus, a showing of likelihood of success on the
merits requires simply that the moving party find support for its position in governing law.” Id.
Plaintiffs have met the burden on this element for its claims against Defendant.

Federal law states, “no qualified individual with a disability shall . . . be subjected to
discrimination by any such entity.” 42 U.S.C.A. § 12132. Mr. Sak is a qualified person as
defined. See § 12131, Mr. Sak’s service dog is squarely covered by the Americans with
Disabilities Act (“ADA”). It is wholly contrary to federal law and constitutes discrimination to
deny him the same. Service dogs are expressly recognized as part of the ADA. See 28 C.F.R. §
35-136. The ADA is silent as to any breed requirements for service dogs. However, the general
rule is that “a public entity shall modify its policies, practices, or procedures to permit the use of
a service animal by an individual with a disability.” Id. The Department of Justice (“DOJ”),
who is tasked with implementation of the ADA, see 42 U.S.C. section 12134(a), in its
interpretation of the aforementioned Regulation has made direct statements about breed specific
legislation. See 28 C.E.R. § 35(App. A); 75 F.R. 56164, 56194, Nondiscrimination on the Basis
of Disability in State and Local Government Services (Sept. 15, 2010). Courts seek guidance
from such implementing regulations, “which are entitled to substantial deference.” Hahn ex rel.
Barta v. Linn County, IA, 130 F. Supp. 2d 1036, 1045 (N.D. Iowa 2001) (“to effectuate the
statutory mandates of the ADA, the Department of Justice (“DOJ”) promulgated regulations

regarding the responsibilities of state and local governments to disabled persons. See 42 U.S.C. §
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12134(a). As will be demonstrated below, therefore, the court will seek guidance from Title II's
implementing regulations, which are entitled to substantial deference.”) (citations omitted).

In a Final Rule, made effective March 15, 2011, the DOJ responded to the impasse
created by breed specific legislation and the right under the ADA to have a service dog.

Specifically, the DOJ stated:

A few commenters suggested that certain breeds of dogs should not be allowed to
be used as service animals. Some suggested that the Department should defer to
local laws restricting the breeds of dogs that individuals who reside in a
community may own. Other commenters opposed breed restrictions, stating that
the breed of a dog does not determine its propensity for aggression and that
aggressive and non-aggressive dogs exist in all breeds.

The Department does not believe that it is either appropriate or consistent with
the ADA to defer to local laws that prohibit certain breeds of dogs based on
local concerns that these breeds may have a history of unprovoked aggression
or attacks. Such deference would have the effect of limiting the rights of
persons with disabilities under the ADA who use certain service animals based
on where they live rather than on whether the use of a particular animal poses
a direct threat to the health and safety of others. Breed restrictions differ
significantly from jurisdiction to jurisdiction. Some jurisdictions have no breed
restrictions. Others have restrictions that, while well-meaning, have the
unintended effect of screening out the very breeds of dogs that have successfully
served as service animals for decades without a history of the type of
unprovoked aggression or attacks that would pose a direct threat, e.g., German
Shepherds. Other jurisdictions prohibit animals over a certain weight, thereby
restricting breeds without invoking an express breed ban. In addition, deference to
breed restrictions contained in local laws would have the unacceptable
consequence of restricting travel by an individual with a disability who uses a
breed that is acceptable and poses no safety hazards in the individual's home
jurisdiction but is nonetheless banned by other jurisdictions. State and local
government entities have the ability to determine, on a case-by-case basis,
whether a particular service animal can be excluded based on that particular
animal's actual behavior or history--not based on fears or generalizations about
how an animal or breed might behave. This ability to exclude an animal whose
behavior or history evidences a direct threat is sufficient to protect health and

safety.
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Id. (emphasis added). Based on this express mandate from the DOJ, it is wholly clear that the
City of Aurelia has no legal support for their continued discrimination against Mr. Sak and
Snickers.

Aurelia, Jowa’s city ordinance chapter 58 which stands in conflict with ADA does not
prevail. See ADA, Title II, Technical Assistance Manual, 11-1.4200 (2011) (stating, “Title II
does not disturb other Federal laws or any State laws that provide protection for individuals with
disabilities at a level greater or equal to that provided by the ADA. It does, however, prevail
over any conflicting State laws.”). See e.g., Green v. Housing Authority of Clackamas County,
994 F.Supp. 1253, 1257 (D. Or. 1998). In fact, it is quite elementary that the Supremacy Clause
favors federal law when state law conflicts with an area of law covered by federal legislation.
Furthermore, since there are agency regulations squarely on-point, these regulations are entitled
to Chevron deference. Chevron, U.S.A., Inc. v. Natural Resources Defense Council, 467 U.S,
837, 842, (1984).

The Chevron-two-step analysis initially asks whether the statute directly speaks to the
precise question at issue. Id.; Johnson v. Gambrinus Co./Spoetzl Brewery, 116 F.3d 1052, 1060-
61 (5th Cir. 1997) (stating, “[w]e also defer to the Justice Department's commentary concerning

“service animals because it is not inconsistent with the plain language of the regulation.”). If it is
concluded that the statute does address the issue, then it is a matter of statutory construction;
however, if the statute does not address the issue, then the analysis continues. “If the statute is
silent or ambiguous with respect to the specific issue, the question for the court is whether the
agency’s answer is based on a permissible construction of the statute.” Id, at 843, “The agency’s
construction does not have to be the only permissible reading of the statute.” Johnson, 116 F.3d

at 1061 (citing Chevron, 467 U.S. at 843 n. 11). “Such legislative regulations are given



Case 5:11-cv-04111 Document 2-1 Filed 12/22/11 Page 8 of 12

controlling weight unless they are arbitrary, capricious, or manifestly contrary to the statute.”
Chevron, 467 U.S. at 844; Gonzales v. Oregon, 546 U.S. 243, 255 (2006) (“An administrative
rule may receive substantial deference if it interprets the issuing agency’s own ambiguous
regulation. Auer v. Robbins, 519 U.S. 452 (1997). An interpretation of an ambiguous statute
niay also receive substantial deference.”); Olmstead v. L.C. by Zimring, 527 U.S. 581, 598
(1999) (“the well-reasoned views of the agencies implementing a statute constitute a body of
experience and informed judgment to which courts and litigants may properly resort for
guidance”).

It is evident that the ADA is silent as to the breed requirements, or lack of requirement, as
applied to service dogs. Thus, if the agency, here the DOJ, has promulgated a permissible
construction that is not arbitrary, capricious or manifestly contrary to the statute, then great
deference is afforded. The DOJ’s interpretation that localities cannot have breed specific
restrictions for service dogs is founded within the spirit of the ADA which seeks to remove
barriers affecting disabled persons. Here, the refusal to defer to local ordinances certainly cannot
be characterized as arbitrary.

A public entity is required to make reasonable modifications to its ordinances pursuant to
the ADA. Hahn, 130 F. Supp. 3d 1051.

The regulations promulgated pursuant to the ADA require public entitieé to

“make reasonable modifications in policies, practices, or procedures when the

modifications are necessary to avoid discrimination on the basis of disability,

unless the public entity can demonstrate that making the modifications would

fundamentally alter the nature of the service, program, or activity.”

Id. (quoting 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(7)). Here, Defendant is unable to show how allowance of a

service dog would fundamentally alter the city’s policy of excluding pit bulls. This is
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particularly true in light of the fact that the Defendant permits pit bulls in the City if they were
present prior to the enactment of the ordinance at issue.

Furthermore, the unreasonable restrictions placed upon pit bulls who are grandfathered in
are similarly unenforceable if Snickers is to operate as a service dog. The restrictions are
onerous and completely undermine Snickers’ role. As such, the fact that Mr. Sak is entitled to a
service dog and accommodation thereof, regardless of breed, necessarily means that the
restrictions must not be enforced.

Thus, Plaintiffs are likely to succeed on the ultimate merits based upon the precise
language in the Regulations and interpreting rules which are afforded great deference under
federal law and the Defendant’s clear failure to make reasonable modifications to its policy in
order to protect Mr. Sak, as required.

IL. DEFENDANT’S CONDUCT THREATENS IRREPARABLE HARM TO
PLAINTIFFS.

“Irreparable harm focuses on the harm or potential harm to the movant of the opposing
party’s conduct or threatened conduct.” Wachovia Sec., L.L.C. v. Stanton, 571 E. Supp. 2d 1014,
1047 (N.D. Iowa 2008). Mr. Saks requires his service dog Snickers in order to sustain a better
quality of life on a daily basis. Mr. Sak has already fallen once since Snickers was forcibly
ousted from the city of Aurelia. Mr. Sak is able to operate in society and experience a higher
quality of life when his medical accommodation, his service dog Snickers is with him. Without
Snickers, Mr. Sak experiences greater and heightened fears, insecurity, and increased chances of
injury from his disability. The Defendant’s action is akin to taking away Mr, Sak’s wheelchair,
to which he also requires. Mr. Sak’s ability to move through life has been seriously

compromised and the perpetuation thereof results in an irreparable injury.
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III.  THE BALANCE OF THE HARMS WEIGHS IN FAVOR OF PLAINTIFES.
When balancing the alleged harms at issue, it is clear that the Court does not entertain

illusory harms, as compared to actual harm experienced. Aventure Communications Tech.,
L.L.C. v. Iowa Utilities Bd., 734 F. Supp. 2d 636, 666 (N.D. Iowa 2010). It bears repeating that
Snickers has absolutely no history of violence or aggression. The Defendant has not alleged that
Snickers has acted in such a way. Rather, the Defendant points to illusory harms believed to be
imminent based upon the misconception that a dog possessing character traits of a pit bull is
somehow inherently dangerous. The Defendant cannot point to cognizable harm while Mr, Sak
“is without his medically necessary service dog. It is evident that the balance of the harms weighs
in favor of Mr. Sak.

IV. A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION WOULD SERVE THE PUBLIC INTEREST.

“The ‘public interest’ factor frequently invites the court to indulge in broad observations

.about conduct that is generally recognizable as costly or injurious. However, there are more
concrete considerations, such as reference to the purposes and interests any underlying
legislation was intended to serve, a preference for enjoining inequitable conduct, and the public's
interest in minimizing unnecessary costs to be met from public coffers.” Aventure
Communications Tech., 734 F. Supp. 2d at 667. The return of a medically necessary
accommodation to a disabled person wholly comports with public policy. “Access to civic life
by people with disabilities is a fundamental goal of the Americans with Disabilities Act.”
Furthermore, disabled individuals should not be denied the ability to move freely through the
communities for fear of encountering a breed specific ordinance that makes the person’s service

dog contraband. As recognized by the DOJ, the disabled individual is to be able to utilize the

10
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service dog and travel, like any other person. To find otherwise threatens to eviscerate the
purpose and spirit sought to be achieved through the Americans with Disabilities Act.
CONCLUSION

Mr. Sak is entitled under the ADA to maintain his service dog, notwithstanding the
perceived fears of residents and local ordinances. Mr. Sak is entitled to protection under federal
law and has shown he is likely to prevail on the merits herein. Mr. Sak has already suffered one
fall without the aid of his service dog and irreparable harm is certain. Mr. Sak’s potential harm
greatly outweighs the perceived and unfounded fears associated with a pit bull breed. Snickers
has not been accused to be aggressive or violent, rather he has been stereotyped and blindly
deemed dangerous. The City of Aurelia was fully informed that Snickers is a service dog and
still removed this medically necessary accommodation from Mr. Sak. Public policy dictates that
Mr, Sak be permitted to maintain his service dog. To deny the same is wholly impermissible
under federal law. Plaintiffs are entitled to the immediate return of the service dog Snickers by
way of injunctive relief. Plaintiffs respectfully move the Court for an evidentiary hearing and

that the Court enjoin the Defendant, as requested in the Motion for Preliminary Injunction filed

“contemporaneously herein,

/s/Sharon K. Malheiro

Sharon K. Malheiro, AT0004936

Michael C. Richards, AT0010828

Michele L. Warnock, AT0010068

The Davis Brown Tower

215 10th St, Suite 1300

Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993

Telephone: (515) 288-2500

Facsimile: (515) 243-0654

E-mail: sharonmalheiro @davisbrownlaw.com
E-mail: mikerichards @davisbrownlaw.com
E-mail: michelewarnock @davisbrownlaw.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFES
11
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Of Counsel:

Davis, Brown, Koehn,
Shors & Roberts, P.C,
The Davis Brown Tower
215 10th St. Suite 1300
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993

Copy to:

George W. Wittgraf
223 North Pine Street
P.O. Box 535
Cherokee, Iowa 51012
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PROOF OF SERVICE

The undersigned certifies that the foregoing
instrument was served upon all parties to the above
cause to each of the attorneys of record herein at
their respective addresses disclosed on the pleadings
on December 22, 2011 by:

00 US Mail 0 FAX
O Hand Delivered ([ Overnight Courier
[0 Federal Express X Other: CM/ECF

Signature: /s/ Sharon K. Malheiro
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF IOWA

WESTERN DIVISION
) NO. 11-4111
JAMES SAK and PEGGY LEIFER, )
)
Plaintiffs, )
v. )
)
) COMPLAINT AND REQUEST FOR
) INJUNCTION
) AND
: ) DECLARATORY RELIEF
THE CITY OF AURELIA, IOWA )
' )
) EXPEDITED HEARING REQUESTED
)
)
Defendant, ) JURY DEMAND

COMES NOW Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer, a married couple, by and through
the undersigned, and for their Complaint against Defendant, the City of Aurelia, Iowa hereby

state to the Court as follows:

Jurisdiction & Venue
1. Mr. Sak is an Iowa resident, domiciled in Aurelia, Iowa.
2. Ms, Leifer is an Iowa resident, domiciled in Aurelia, Iowa.
3. Defendant is an Jowa municipality.
4, The Court has jurisdiction over this case pursuant to 28 U.S.C. section 1331,

federal question jurisdiction, and 28 U.S.C. section 1367, supplemental jurisdiction, as this
matter pertains to 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.

5. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S,C. section 1391(b).

#2121900
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Facts

6. Mr. Sak is a disabled, retired police officer, who recently moved to Aurelia, Iowa
from Chicago, Illinois.

7. Mr. Sék is married to Ms, Leifer.

8. Mr. Sak became disabled after he suffered a hemorrhagic stroke in November of
| 2008.
| 9. Mr. Sak and Ms. Leifer dated for years before marrying in the hospital in March
of 2009, once Mr. Sak recovered from his debilitating stroke.

10.  Mr. Sak is permanently disabled as a result of the stroke.

11.  Theright side of his body is uncontrollable by Mr. Sak.

12. Mr. Sak is confined to a wheelchair.

13, Mr. Sak received treatment and rehabilitation at the University of Illinois Medical
Center for the stroke.

14.  Mr. Sak requires the use of a service dog, named “Snickers” in order to assist him.

15.  The dog was adopted from a private, informal sale by another individual.

16.  Mr. Sak has owned the dog, since the dog was eight weeks old.

17.  Snickers is currently five and one-half years old.

18.  Snickers has absolutely no history of aggression.

19.  The service dog Snickers appears on the National Service Animal Registry as a
certified service dog. See Exhibit “A”.

20.  The service dog Snickers has been trained to assist Mr. Sak with tasks which
mitigate his disability, including walking, balance, and retrieving items around the house. See

Exhibit “B”.
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21.  When Mr. Sak suffers a fall, the service dog Snickers is able to assist Mr. Sak.

22. Mr. Sak and his wife, Ms. Leifer moved to Aurelia in November of 2011 to care
for Mr. Leifer’s elderly mother, age 87, who is an Aurelia resident,

23.  Mr. Sak and Ms. Leifer were summoned to an Aurelia City Council meeting on
November 21, 2011 because Aurelia maintains a breed-specific city ordinance against pit bulls.
See Exhibits “C” and “D”.

24.  Service dog Snickers is believed to be a pit bull mix.

25. At the City Council meeting, a petition was presented, signed by 36 residents
asking for enforcement of the city ordinance against service dog Snickers. See Exhibit “E”.

26.  Mr. Sak and Ms. Leifer were summoned to another Aurelia City Council meeting
on December 14, 2011 and informed they had 24 hours to remove their service dog from city
limits.

27.  The Aurelia city ordinance states that pit bulls, in violation of the ordinance will
be destroyed. See Exhibit “D”, at 58.03(2).

28.  Since that time, the service dog Snickers has been boarded at a veterinary’s office
outside of the City of Aurelia, incurring costs.

29, On December 15, 2011, Mr. Sak suffered a fall from his wheelchair and was

“unable to be pulled back into his wheelchair because he was without his service dog, Snickers.

30. As a result, Ms, Leifer had to call 911 and Officer Gene Shur arrived at the
residence to assist.
31.  Ms. Leifer’s ability to care for her elderly mother has been compromised by the

inability to leave Mr. Sak alone, for fear of another fall or injury.
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32. Mr. Sak’s physical therapist, Aileen Eviota, PT DPT NCS at the University of
Hlinois Medical Center wrote a letter, dated December 2, 2011 to the Aurelia City Council
describing the medical necessity of the service dog, Snickers. See Exhibit “B”,

33.  Both Mr. Sak and Ms. Leifer have experienced tremendous worry and fear since
the service dog Snickers was forced out of their home,

34, Notwithstanding the undisputed fact that Snickers is a service dog and a medical
necessity, the City of Aurelia has enforced the city ordinance against Mr. Sak, thereby depriving
Mr. Sak of the medical and emotional benefits provided by service dog, Snickers.

Causes of Action

Violation of 42 U.S.C. § 12133: Title IT of the Americans with Disabilities Act

35.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 34 as if fully set forth herein,

36.  Defendant is a public entity as a local government, acting through its City Council
and City Attorney.

37.  Mr. Sak is a disabled person who requires the assistance of his service dog,
Snickers.

38.  Mr. Sak has standing to bring this action under the Americans with Disabilites
Act (“ADA”) due to the injury suffered as a result of Defendant, the City of Aurelia’s disregard
of federal law, |

39.  Defendant, the City of Aurelia has a city ordinance prohibiting pit bulls. See

Exhibit C.
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40,  Defendant, the City of Aurelia enforced the city ordinance against Mr. Sak

vrequiring that his service dog, Snickers, be removed from city limits within 24 hours of the City
Council meeting held on December 14, 2011, or Snickers would be destroyed.

41.  Currently, Snickers is boarded at veterinary’s office outside the city limits.

42, Defendant, the City of Aurelia, enforced the city ordinance against Mr. Sak with
the full knowledge that the service dog, Snickers, is required due to Mr. Sak’s health.

43,  The Defendant’s discrimination caused damage to Mr. Sak.

44,  Mr. Sak has experienced considerable emotional distress as a result of the
Defendant’s discrimination.

Declaratory Relief

45.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 44 as if fully set forth herein.

46.  Plaintiffs request that after notice and hearing that the Court enter judgment that
Defendant, the City of Aurelia’s policies, regulations, practices and conduct of interfering with
the Mr, Sak’s ability to utilize his service dog, Snickers is contrary to the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

47.  Defendant, the City of Aurelia, violated 42 U.S.C, 12101, et seq. through its

| refusal to recognize a reasonable accommodation under the ADA and by enforcing the pit bull
pfohibition against a service dog.

48.  Defendant, the City of Aurelia, violated 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq. through its
refusal to remove the breed restrictions regarding his service dog from its city ordinance as

applied to Mr. Sak, as a disabled person protected by federal law.
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Injunctive Relief

49.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 48 as if fully set forth herein.

50.  Plaintiffs seek an injunction restraining the City of Aurelia from enforcing the city
ordinance prohibiting pit bulls, with respect to Mr. Sak’s service dog and an immediate return of
the service dog, Snickers to Mr. Sak.

51. A preliminary injunction is warranted because (1) at trial, Mr. Sak is likely to
prevail on the merits because the ADA service animal provisions have been expressly interpreted
to prevail over breed specific legislation and because the service dog is clearly a reasonable
accommodation; (2) without the use of his service dog, Mr. Sak will suffer irreparable harm due
to the fact that Snickers is a medical necessity and Mr. Sak has already fallen at least once since
losing Snickers, coupled with the emotional distress of being denied his service dog which is
essentially an extension of himself; (3) the harm Mr. Sak will sustain if this preliminary
injunction is not granted is far greater than any potential harm the Defendant may sustain; and
(4) the issuance of a preliminary injunction is in the public’s interest.

52.  Plaintiffs request that the Court order Defendant to permit service dog Snickers to
be immediately returned to Plaintiffs.

53.  Plaintiffs further request that the Court order that Defendant is precluded from
enforcing its city ordinance restrictions against Snickers that apply to pit bulls in Aurelia, Towa

that are “grandfathered in”.
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54. Snickers, as a service dog, cannot be held to the unreasonable restrictions that

appear in the city ordinance if he is to do his job of protecting and assisting Mr. Sak. See Exhibit

“D” at 58.03(1)(A)-(G).

55. - Plaintiffs are contemporaneously‘ filing a Motion for Injunctive Relief and
Expedited Hearing under Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65 and Local Rule 65.

Spousal Consortinm

56.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 55 as if fully set forth herein.
57.  Ms. Leifer is the spouse of Ms. Saks.

58. As a result of the Defendant’s discrimination, Ms. Leifer lost the value of services

of Mr. Sak.

59.  Ms, Leifer has been unable to attend to her mother or depend upon her husband as
a result of the loss of the service dog Snickers.

60.  With theb aid of the service dog, Snickers, Mr. Sak is substantially more
dependant.

61.  Without the aid of service dog, Snickers, Mr. Sak’s disability requires increased
care which affects Ms. Leifer’s abilities to tend to other matters.

Attorney’s Fees & Costs

62.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 61 as if fully set forth herein,
63.  Plaintiffs herein seek attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to the ADA. See 42

U.S.C. § 12133;29 U.S.C. § 794a.
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Jury Demand

64.  Plaintiffs restate and incorporate by this reference each allegation contained in
paragraphs 1 through 63 as if fully set forth herein,

65.  Plaintiffs seek a jury for the issues pleaded within.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiffs, James Sak and Peggy Leifer hereby request this Court: (1)
grant Plaintiffs’ request herein, and as found in the contemporaneously filed Motion for
Injunctive Relief under Federal Rule 65, for a injunctive relief enjoining Defendant from denying
Mr. Sak his rights under federal law by maintaining his service dog, regardless of the breed and
as a reasonable accommodation for his disability, (2) grant Plaintiffs’ request for an injunction
specifying the immediate return of the service dog, Snickers, to his owner without the restrictions
in the Aurelia city ordinance; (3) enter a declaratory judgment the Defendant’s city ordinance is
in violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act and is unenforceable; (4) enter judgment
against Defendant that enforcement of the city ordinance at issue violates Mr. Sak’s rights under
the Americans with Disabilities Act and constitutes discrimination; (5) find that Ms. Liefer is
entitled to damages for the effect of the Defendant’s actions; (6) award attorney’s fees, costs and
expenses incurred by Plaintiffs in this action pursuant to statute; (7) award emotional distress
damages for the discrimination pursuant to statute; and (8) for any further relief the Court deems

just and appropriate under the circumstances.
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[s/Sharon K. Malheiro

Sharon K. Malheiro, AT0004936

Michael C. Richards, AT0010828

Michele L. Warnock, AT0010068

The Davis Brown Tower

215 10th St, Suite 1300

Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993

Telephone: (515) 288-2500

Facsimile: (515) 243-0654

E-mail: sharonmalheiro @davisbrownlaw.com
E-mail: mikerichards @davisbrownlaw.com
E-mail: michelewarnock @davisbrownlaw.com

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS
Of Counsel:

Davis, Brown, Koehn,
Shors & Roberts, P.C.
The Davis Brown Tower
215 10th St. Suite 1300
Des Moines, Iowa 50309-3993
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National Service Animal Registry

BOY NW F, Straot « Grants Pasy . Oragan H7528  Toll Froe + (866) 787-8930  Fax - (541) 471-1122

NSAR CERTIFIED SERVICE ANIMAL

This document afflrms that
“SNICKERS™ (NSAR database I C12694, see
adjacent photo) 15 sertifind as & gualified service
dog and registered with National Service Aniraal
Ragistry (NSAR) on the date listed below. This
service dog has been trained to assist P LEXFER,
the confirmed disabled handlar, The hardier am
sarvice dog sre lsted in the Natioral Service
Anlrmal Registry (NSAR) database and may be
found on the following website:
wwwLnRarco. Lot/ datalmse. i,

Service dogs are dogs that are specifically SNICKERS
trained to perform Important iife tasks for people
who have difficulty performing ot are unable to perform the task themselves, These
tasks are directly related to the handler's disability, $ervice dogs are working animals,
not pets,

Under the Americans with Disabllities Act (ADA), businesses and organizations that
serve the public must allow people with disabilities to bring their service animals into
all areas of the facility where customers sre normally allowed to go. This federal Taw
applies to all businesses open to the public, Including restaurants, hotels, motels, taxis,
buses, shuttles, airplanes, grocery and retal) stores, hospitals, medical offices,
thaaters, health clubs, all parlks, government bulldings, and zoos.

For more information, please call the U.5. Jugtice Departrment ADA Information
Une at (800) 514-0301 (voice) or (800) 514-0383 (TTY) or vislt the ADA Business
Connection at www,ada.gov,

Noverryar 28 2011
Date ’
oL m— e U
Tim Livingood, W.ED, CEQ

TR

o
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1740 W Thylor
Cehicsgo. L 60813
T (312 986-0525
F (312) 9861457
newieatd Guido o

{L_ University of
== llinois
Medical Center

b ot
e WNICANS

Clly of Auralle
Town Counol
Date 1272741

Re: Gniekars, Bervice Dog
Dear Town Gouncll,

Jamos Sak has beon a patient under my name slnce January 2009, | have
worked! exiensively with him 1 Ireprove his functional capabifides. Although

ha has made significant Improvements, ho continues to demonstrate some
disability In which the sarvice dog, Snlckers, allows him 1o five more
Indeporndontly,

Due to hia stroke, James Sak has certaln frltations regaccng hlg enthe
right sldde of his body. In.ordar to help alleviate thess dificultles, and Lo
enhance his qualty of e, well balng, and ongolng rocavery , ho ragulres
sarvice dog, Snickers, As mentioned befors, | have been nvolved In hig
care for more than 2 vears, Our thenpy sessions have also included
rehabllitation with Jarnos Sak and Bnickees, in which Fwas parsonaly
involvad In. James and Brilckers have worked togother under my
supervislon in which his abliity to lIive Independently has improved, Snlokers
hes boon individually trained 1o asslst Jamas with tagks which mitigats his
Cisability, inclucting walldng, bakance, and retiaving frerns around the house,

Plonse contast o if you have any guestions. Thank you.

&":inc@ra'zy

/ﬂf e

»\ll@an Esdote, BT OPT NGS
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November 21, 2011
The Aurelia City Council met in regular session on November 21, 2011, Matt
Fredericksen called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with roll call as follows:
Present: Schulenberg, Fredericksen, Nelson
Absent: Keith, Bowen, Lindgren
Also Present; Messerole, Mark Sangwin, Dan Sinclair — Dakota Supply Co., Denny
Allen, James Sak & Peggy Leifer, Mitch Langschwaget, Pat Howey, Jim Tell, Jacob
Schutt, Tim Dunn, Terry Holub, Anna Waddell, Randy Newlon

Nelson made motion to appoint Matt Fredericksen as the presiding officer for the meeting
in the absence of the Mayor and Mayor Pro-Tem, second by Schulenberg. All members
present voting “aye”, motion carried.

Schulenberg made motion to approve consent agenda, second by Nelson, All members
voting “aye”, motion catried.

Minutes of previous meetings
Clerk/Treasurer & Investment Reports

Bills Payable

Police Report
October Revenues October Disbursements
Property Taxes 104,019.25 General Fund 7,482.86
Local Option Sales Tax 7,733.43 Special Revenue. 0.00
Licenses & Permits 214,00 Local Option Sales Tax 1,125.00
Use of Money & Property 1,775.78 Road Use Tax 1,563.87
Road Use Tax 7,598.33 Debt Service 0.00
State & Local Grants & Reim  815.07  Expendable Trusts 0.00
Water Utility 9,568.58 Water Utility 2,197.07
Sewer Utility 8,851.72 Sewer Utility 624.04
Sanitation 6,262.79 Sanitation 6,074.56
Storm Water Utility 475.00 Storm Water Utility 0.00
Other Fees & Charges 181.00 Payroll 15,213.38
Special Assessments 1,993.96 Transfers Out 7.894.50
Miscellaneous 11030 Total 42,175.28
Transfers In 7,894.50
Total 157,493.71
November Bills Payable:
American Legion Halloween Patrol 100,00
Aurelia Library petty cash 75.31
Aurelia Lumber antifreeze,batteries, misc, supplies 104,90
Aurelia Mun, Utilities utilities 2,507.62
Aurelia Star publications 66.00
B V Cat Rescue League captured & removed cats 440,00
B V Stationery office supplies 7.90
Baker & Taylor Library books 348.51
Ballantyne, Craig outside water meter sewer rebate 11.46

Berge, Anna
Bomgaars
Brown Supply Co.

outside water meter sewer rebate
ice melt for streets
gutter broom for st. sweeper

643.07
216.01

24.36
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Bruns, Nadine
Cardmember Service
Casey’s

Cherokee Co. Solid Waste
Classy Mini-Storage
Countyline

Data Technologies
Ferguson Enterprises
First Abstract

First Coop

Forbes, Bob

Grienke, Gilbert

Hach

Handwork, Craig & Kathy
Helen’s Comm Laundry
Heritage Bank

Hines, Doug
Hinkhouse Hearing
Holiday Inn

HyVee

Kai, Cindy

Long Lines

Lundell Construction
Lytle, Tom & Jodi
MET

Michelle Swanson
MicroMarketing
MidAmerican Energy
Modern Heating
Nelson, Sherm
Nu-Telecom

Patton, Dave
Penworthy

Perking Office Solution
Peterson, Harold
Plunkett’s

Postmaster

Radke, Brik

Rehab Systems
Richardson, Paul
Royers Jewelry
Sanitary Services
Steve’s Window Service
Suhr, Gene

Taste of Home Books
Transamerica Life Ins.
Westphal, Nate
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outside water meter sewer rebate 327
adwords, Sangwin CEU’s 352,19
Oct. fuel 351.88
contract 2,179.56
1 load of black dirt 142.95
6 white goods citywide cleanup 60.00
2012 Summit License Fee 1,730.05
water supplies 29.18
abstract 405 Ridgeview lane 375.00
October fuel 810.96
outside water meter sewer rebate 18.15
outside water meter sewer rebate 10.41
water test supplies 205.31
outside water meter sewer rebate 5.52
commercial laundry 83.60
Renewal of CD 50,000.00
outside water metet sewer rebate 15.63
Sangwin hearing test 23.06
Kai fall IMFOA 113.03
coffee, forks, napkins 81.14
reimburse for mileage to IMFOA 78.00
cell phones 154,86
parts to repair storm drain 31.68
outside water meter sewer rebate 9.87
wastewater tests 133.00
police — update software 345,00
Library books 99.96
Oct. utilities 55.39
replaced thermostat at CC 109.55
outside water meter sewer rebate 3.66
Oct. phone/internet/long distance 415,68
outside water meter sewer rebate 30.66
library books 128.00
office supplies 64.99
outside water meter sewer rebate 79.08
pest control, City Hall & CC 83.62
postage 254,67
outside water meter sewer rebate 9.18
jet/vac & televise sewer lines 5,163.90
outside water meter sewer rebate 59.61
engrave plate for Library 7.25
contract 4,092.50
clean CC windows 38.00
outside water meter sewer rebate 17.91
2012 Taste of Home 30,98
Quarterly life insurance — Sangwin 74,95
outside water meter sewer rebate 39.78

TOTAL 72,747.76

James Sak and Peggy Leifer appeared before Council concerning registering theif mix
breed pitbull, The City of Aurelia Ordinance Chapter 58 “Pit Bull Dog” states it is
unlawful to harbor a pit bull or any mixed breed of pit bull. Nelson made motion to table
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until next month’s meeting in order to receive more input from longer term council
members, second by Schulenberg, All members present voting “aye”, motion carried.

Dan Sinclair, Dakota Supply Group, appeared before Council concerning radio read
meters. A quote for Badger Model 25 water meters; Badger Model 25 Itron Radio
Heads; Itron Handheld Radio Starter Kit; annual software and hardware maintenance;
and GE electric meters was reviewed.

The Public Wotks Repott was teviewed, Called to get brush pile ground; working at

pool; Lundell’s cleaned approximately 30 blocks of sewer lines and these were mapped;
looking to televise what was cleaned. Televised sewer line in alley behind Heritage Bank
to locate manhole; the shelter west of pool needs new roof, Fredericksen will look at it;
Blake Trapp donated new toilets for Fire Station; finished CEU’s for spraying license;
wintetized pool and bath house; snow plow back from TCY Machine. Nelson made
motion to televise the blocks that Lundell’s recently cleaned, second by Schulenberg. All
members present voting “aye”, motion carried.

Denny Allen appeared before Council proposing a location for a 7/10 of a mile walking
trail near the wetlands. Schulenberg made motion to approve the walking trail, making
sure that Adam Booth who farms the land is notified, second by Nelson, All members
present voting “aye”, motion carried, Discussion was held concerning removing or
repainting the sign displaying lots for sale.

Nelson made motion to approve the Municipal Electric budget, second by Schulenberg.
All members present voting “aye”, motion carried. '

Schulenberg made motion to apptove Resolution #11-14 — Resolution to Acknowledge
Offer to Buy property at 405 Ridgeview and set public hearing for December 19, 2011,
second by Nelson, Roll Call Vote “aye”, Schulenberg, Nelson, Fredericksen. “Nay”
none, motion carried, Keith, Lindgren, Bowen absent,

Discussion was held concerning renting out back office in City Hall. Council will use the
space for storage.

Two styles of new “Welcome to Aurelia” signs from Denny Holton were discussed.
Council would like additional information and will discuss at December’s meeting.

Burma-Shave signs compliments of Our Jowa magazine were discussed. Our Iowa
magazine instigated a contest to place a set of signs near one town in each of ITowa’s 99
counties and has asked readers to nominate their town and give reasons why they should
have the signs, Jim Tell will look into the procedure for applying.

Clerk’s Report was reviewed.

Police report was reviewed.

Schulenberg made motion to renew the City’s Delta Dental of Iowa plan with increase of
3.1%, second by Nelson, All members present voting “aye”, motion catried.
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| Code of Ordinances, Chapter 75 “All-Terrain Vehicles and Snowmobiles” and Code of
lowa 321.247 “Golf Cart Operation on City Streets” were tabled until next month’s
meeting.

Landfill report was not given, Bowen absent.

Thete being no further business to discuss, meeting was adjourned.

Matt Fredericksen Barb Messerole, City Clerk
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CHAPTER 58
PIT BULL DOG

58.01 Definitions 58,03 Keeping of Licensed Pit Bull Dogs
58.02 Keeping of Pit Bull Dogs Prohibited

58.01 DEFINITIONS. For use in this chapter the following terms are defined as
follows:

1. “Pit Bull Dog” shall mean any dog over the age of six (6) months known
by the owner to be a Pit Bull Terrier, Pit Bull Terrier shall mean any Bull Terrier,
American Pit Bull Tertier, Staffordshire Bull Terrier, or American Staffordshire
Bull Terrier breed of dog or any mixed breed of dog which contains as an element
of its breeding the breed of Bull Terrier, American Pit Bull Terrier Staffordshire
Bull Tertiet, or Ametican Staffordshire Terrier so as to be identifiable as partially

. of the breed Bull Terrier, American Pit Bull Terrier, Staffordshire Bull Terrier, or
American Staffordshire Terrier,

58.02 KEEPING OF PIT BULL DOGS PROHIBITED. It is unlawful to keep, or
harbor, own ot in any way possess a Pit Bull Dog within the City of Aurelia.

58,03 KEEPING OF LICENSED PIT BULL DOGS.

1. Provisions of this chapter shall not be applicable to any owners, keepers,
or hatborers of Pit Bull Dogs licensed within the City of Aurelia before the
effective date of this chapter, The phrase “licensed within the City of Aurelia”
and “licensed” when used in the chapter shall mean licensed pursuant to the terms
of Chapter 57 of the Aurelia Municipal Code.

The keeping of such licensed dogs shall be subject to the following standards:

A, Sale or Transfer of Ownership Prohibited. No person shall sell,
barter, or in any other way dispose of a Pit Bull Dog licensed within the
City to a person within the City unless the recipient person resides
permanently in the same houschold and on the same premises as the
licensed owner of such dog; provided, that the owner of a licensed Pit Bull
Dog may sell or otherwise dispose of a licensed dog or the offspring of
such dog to persons who do not reside within the City.

B. Animals Born to Licensed Dogs, All offspring born to Pit Bull
Dogs licensed within the City shall be removed from the City within six
(6) weeks of birth of such animal,

C. Reporting Requirements, All owners, keepers, or harborers of
licensed Pit Bull Dogs shall within ten (10) days of the following
occurrence report the following information in writing to the City Clerk
and Animal Control Officer as required hereafter:
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(1)  The removal from the City or death of a licensed Pit Bull
Dog;

(2)  The birth of offspring of a licensed Pit Bull Dog;

(3)  The new address of the owner of a licensed Pit Bull Dog
should the owner move within the City limits.

D. Leash and Muzzle. No person shall permit a licensed Pit Bull Dog
to go outside its kennel or pen unless such dog is securely leashed with a
leash no longer than four (4) feet in length and otherwise comply with
Section 57.04. No person shall permit a licensed Pit Bull Dog to be kept
on a chain, rope, or othet type of leash outside its kennel or pen unless a
person is in physical control of the chain, rope or leash.

E. Confinement. All licensed Pit Bull Dogs shall be securely
confined indoors or in a securely enclosed and locked pen, kennel, or

structure and the owner must fully and completely comply with Section
57.04.

F, Confinement Indoors. No licensed Pit Bull Dog shall be kept on a
potch, patio, or in any part of a house or structure which would allow such
dog to exit such a building on its own volition, In addition, no such
animal shall be kept in a house or structure when the windows are open or
when screen windows or screen doors are the only obstacles preventing
the dog from exiting the structure,

G. Identification Photographs and Tattoos. All owners, keepets, or
harborers of licensed Pit Bull Dogs shall provide within ten (10) days of
the effective date of this chapter, to the City Clerk and Animal Control
Officer, two 3 x 5 inch color photographs of the licensed animal clearly
showing the color and approximate size of the animal. The owner or
keeper shall within the aforementioned ten (10) day period at his own
expense have the license number assigned pursuant to Chapter 57 of the
City of Aurelia Municipal Code tattooed upon such a Pit Bull Dog by a
licensed veterinarian, The tattoo shall be placed either on the upper inner
lip or inside the upper left rear thigh of the dog.

Failure to Comply. It shall be unlawful for the owner, keeper, or harborer

of a Pit Bull Dog licensed with the City of Aurelia to fail to comply with the
requirements and conditions set forth in this chapter, Each day of violation shall
be a separate offense. Any Pit Bull Dog found to be the subject of a violation of
this chapter shall be subject to immediate confiscation by the Animal Control
Officer, Such animal shall be humanely destroyed within seven (7) days, unless a
Judge of Court of competent jurisdiction orders its release or the owner provides
adequate proof to the Animal Control Officer that such licensed dog shall no
longer reside in the City of Aurelia.@

(Ch, 58 — Ord. 661 — Mar. 08 Supp.)
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Petition to the Au elia Citv Council
We the undersigned citizens of the City of Aureha do respectfully
request/urge the Aurelia City Council retain as written an without
exception the existing City of Aurelia Ordinance, Chapter 58 - “Pit
Bull Dogs.” It is our concern that a change or any exceptions to the
Ordinance could cause an unwanted safety /hazard to the general
public, qpemfically/ especially our children.

'
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JS 44 .
(Rev, 07/86)

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The J5-44 clvil cover sheet and the Information contained heraln nelther rePlace nor supplemaent the filing and service of pleadings or other

papers as required by law, except as provided by local rules of court, This

orm, approved by the Judiclal Conference of the Unlted States In

September 1974, Is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of inltlating the clvil docket sheet, (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON

THE REVERSE OF THE FORM.)
1 (a) PLAINTIFFS

James Sak and Peggy Leifer

(b) COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED PLAINTIFF _Cherokee
(EXCEPT IN U,S., PLAINTIFF CASE)

DEFENDANTS
The City of Aurelia, ITowa

COUNTY OF RESIDENCE OF FIRST LISTED DEFENDANT
(IN U,8, PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE TRACT
OF LAND INVOLVED

a7 RTTORNEYE (FIRM NAME, ADDREGE, AND TELLPHONE NOMBER]
Shaxon K. Malhelro, Michael ¢, Richards, Michele L,
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